
 Page 1 

 

AGENDA 

Board of Adjustment Meeting 

December 14, 2022 | 6:30 PM  

Council Chambers 

City Hall | 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 

 

 
Notice is hereby given that a regular meeting of the Board of Adjustment of the City of Lucas will be held on Wednesday, 

December 14, 2022, at 6:30 pm at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 75002-7651 at which time the 

following agenda will be discussed. As authorized by Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the Board of Adjustment 

may convene into closed Executive Session for the purpose of seeking confidential legal advice from the City Attorney on any 

item on the agenda at any time during the meeting. 

 

How to Provide Input at a Meeting:  

 

Speak In Person: Request to Speak forms will be available at the meeting. Please fill out the form and 

give to the City Secretary prior to the start of the meeting. This form will also allow a place for comments.  

 

Submit Written Comments: If you are unable to attend a meeting and would like to submit written 

comments regarding a specific agenda item, email the City Secretary at eday@lucastexas.us by no later 

than 3:30 pm the day of the meeting. The email must contain the person’s name, address, phone number, 

and the agenda item(s) for which comments will be made. Any requests received after 3:30 pm will not 

be included at the meeting. 

 

Call to Order  

 

• Roll Call 

• Determination of Quorum 

• Reminder to turn off or silence cell phones 

• Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Public Hearing 
 

 

1. Public hearing to consider the request by Joshua Maberry for a variance from the City’s Code of 

Ordinances to allow an accessory building to be located within the required side yard setbacks 

located at 32 Woodmoor Drive, Woodmoor Addition Second Section, Lot 17. (Building Inspector 

Scott DeJong) 
 

 A. Presentation by Building Inspector Scott DeJong 

 B. Conduct Public Hearing 

 C. Take action on the variance request  

 

Regular Agenda 
 

 

2. Consider approval of the minutes of the May 25, 2022 Board of Adjustment meeting. (City Secretary 

Erin Day) 

 

mailto:eday@lucastexas.us


 Page 2 

 

Executive Agenda 
 

As authorized by Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the Board of Adjustment may convene into closed Executive Session for 

the purpose of seeking confidential legal advice from the City Attorney regarding any item on the agenda at any time during the meeting. 

This meeting is closed to the public as provided in the Texas Government Code.  

 
3. Executive Session: An Executive Session is not scheduled for this meeting. 

4. Adjournment. 

 

Certification 
I do hereby certify that the above notice was posted in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act on the bulletin board at Lucas City 

Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 75002 and on the City’s website at www.lucastexas.us on or before 5:00 p.m. on December 9, 

2022. 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Erin Day, City Secretary 

 
In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City of Lucas will provide for reasonable accommodations for persons attending 

public meetings at City Hall.  Requests for accommodations or interpretive services should be directed to Erin Day at 972-912-1211 or by 

email at eday@lucastexas.us at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 



Item No. 01 

 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 

Board of Adjustments Agenda Request 

December 14, 2022 

Requester: Building Inspector Scott DeJong 

 

Agenda Item Request  
 

Public hearing to consider the request by Joshua Maberry for a variance from the City’s Code of 

Ordinances to allow an accessory building to be located within the required side yard setbacks 

located at 32 Woodmoor Drive, Woodmoor Addition Second Section, Lot 17.  

 

 A. Presentation by Building Inspector Scott DeJong  

 B. Conduct Public Hearing 

 C. Take action on the variance request  

 

Background Information  
 

The City’s Board of Adjustment has received a request for a variance from the literal interpretation 

of the City’s Code of Ordinances to allow an accessory building to be located within the required 

side yard setbacks. 

 

The City’s Code of Ordinances, Chapter 14, Division 8, Accessory Buildings, Structures and Uses, 

14.04.304 General accessory building and structures regulations, states the following:  

 

(3)  Setbacks. 

(A)  Accessory buildings. 

(i)  Front yard setback, a minimum of ten feet behind the rear build line of the main 

structure unless the building is attached and is designed to be architecturally 

compatible with the main building and constructed of similar materials as the main 

building. Then a fifty-foot front yard setback is required. 

(ii)  Rear yard setback, a minimum of twenty feet. 

(iii)  Side yard setbacks, a minimum of twenty feet. 

 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation  

 

1. Public Hearing Notice 

2. Location Map 

3. Permit Application 

4. Variance Application  

 

Budget/Financial Impact  

 

NA 

 

Recommendation  
 

Staff has no recommendation on this item. This is a Board of Adjustment decision.  

https://ecode360.com/39199586#39199586
https://ecode360.com/39199587#39199587
https://ecode360.com/39199588#39199588
https://ecode360.com/39199589#39199589
https://ecode360.com/39199590#39199590


Item No. 01 

 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 

Board of Adjustments Agenda Request 

December 14, 2022 

Motion  
 

I make a motion to approve/deny the request by Joshua Maberry for a variance from the City’s 

Code of Ordinances to allow an accessory building to be located within the required side yard 

setbacks located at 32 Woodmoor Drive, Woodmoor Addition Second Section, Lot 17.  
 



        
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING  
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that the Board of Adjustments of the City of Lucas, Texas will 
conduct a public hearing on December 14, 2022 at 6:30 p.m. at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country 
Club, Lucas, Texas to consider a request for a variance from the literal interpretation of the City’s 
Code of Ordinances more particularly described as follows: 
 
An application submitted by Joshua Maberry for a parcel of land located in Woodmoor Addition 
Second Section, Lot 17 being all of a 1.93-acre tract of land, otherwise known as 32 Woodmoor, 
Lucas Texas. The request is for variance from the literal interpretation of the City’s Code of 
Ordinance to allow an accessory building to be located within the required side yard setbacks.  
 
The City’s Code of Ordinances, Chapter 14, Division 8, Accessory Buildings, Structures and 
Uses, 14.04.304 General accessory building and structures regulations, states the following:  
 

(3)  
Setbacks. 
(A)  
Accessory buildings. 
(i)  
Front yard setback, a minimum of ten feet behind the rear build line of the main structure 
unless the building is attached and is designed to be architecturally compatible with the 
main building and constructed of similar materials as the main building. Then a fifty-foot 
front yard setback is required. 
(ii)  
Rear yard setback, a minimum of twenty feet. 
(iii)  
Side yard setbacks, a minimum of twenty feet. 

 
 
Those wishing to speak FOR or AGAINST the above item are invited to attend.  If you are unable 
to attend and have comments you may send them to City of Lucas, Attention: City Secretary, 
665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 75002, email eday@lucastexas.us and it will be 
presented at the hearing. If you have any question about the request please contact Joe Hilbourn 
at jhilbourn@lucastexas.us.   
 
  
         

https://ecode360.com/39199586#39199586
https://ecode360.com/39199587#39199587
https://ecode360.com/39199588#39199588
https://ecode360.com/39199589#39199589
https://ecode360.com/39199590#39199590
mailto:eday@lucastexas.us
mailto:jhilbourn@lucastexas.us


LOCATION MAP: 32 WOODMOOR CIRCLE  

 







Lot No. 17

No. 32
One Story

Brick Residence

Lot No. 16
Lot No. 18

Creek/ Open Space

M
eas.: N

 01°29'38" W
  480.84'

M
eas.: S

 01°30'02" E
  495.48'

Meas.: S 88°20'17" W  171.04'

L172.13'  R667.82'

84114.7 Sq. Feet
1.93 Acres

By graphic plotting only, this property is in Zone X of the National Flood Insurance Rate Map, Community Panel No. ____________, which bears an Effective date of
____________and is not in a Special Flood Hazard Area. As shown on the FEMA website (http://msc.fema.gov) by FIRMette created on [TODAYS DATE] we have
learned this community does currently participate in the program. No field surveying was performed to determine this zone and an elevation certificate may be
needed to verify this determination or apply for a variance from the Federal Emergency Management Agency.

I, J. Scott Cole, Registered Professional Land Surveyor No. 5411, do hereby
certify that this plat is the result of a survey made by me or under my
direction on the ground of the property shown hereon, the lines and
dimensions of said property being as indicated by this plat. The size,
location and types of buildings and improvements are as shown, set back
from the property lines the distances indicated. Evaluation of Restrictions
and Easements of record which may affect this property, if any, has been
limited to those provided from Schedule B of the title commitment. Visible
and Apparent Easements, if any, are as shown.
Bearing Source: All bearings are based on Texas State Plane Coordinate
System, North Central Zone.

S  U  R  V  E  Y     P  L  A  T32 Woodmoor Drive

Being Lot  17,  of the  Woodmoor Addition Second Section,  an Addition to the City of  Lucas, Collin County, Texas, according to the Map or Plat
thereof recorded in Volume 1285,  Page 1,  of the Map or Plat Records of  Collin  County, Texas.

JOB #  ________   SCALE ________   DRAWN BY _____  CHECKED BY _____# 1:20 # #

TM

RESIDENTIAL & COMMERCIAL SERVICES | DALLAS - FORTWORTH

I, J. Scott Cole, Registered Professional Land Surveyor No. 5411, do hereby certify that this plat
is the result of a survey made by me or under my direction on the ground of the property shown
hereon, the lines and dimensions of said property being as indicated by this plat. The size,
location and types of buildings and improvements are as shown, set back from the property
lines the distances indicated. This survey was performed without the benefit of a current title
commitment. There may be matters affecting this property that only a current title commitment
would reveal. Undersigned assumes no libility for such matters, Visible and Apparent
Easements, if any, are as shown.
The elevations and grading patterns are as shown and were developed from a survey on the
ground of subject property, and accurately depict the grades as they existed on this date. The
grading patterns as shown hereon are based on current conditions at the time of the survey and
are subject to change as they are influenced by man and/or nature, or other factors. This survey
may not depict the grading patterns of this property after the date of this survey. the
homeowner must maintain the grading patterns to properly drain the water away from the
structures  shown hereon.
Bearing Source: All bearings are based on Texas State Plane Coordinate System, North Central
Zone.

2221 Justin Road, #119-466 Flower Mound, TX 75028
Texas Firm Registration No. 10014600
PH: (214) 919-7883
www.ssctx.net

I, J. Scott Cole, Registered Professional Land Surveyor No. 5411, do
hereby certify that this plat is the result of a survey made by me or
under my direction on the ground of the property shown hereon, the
lines and dimensions of said property being as indicated by this plat.
The size, location and types of buildings and improvements are as shown,
set back from the property lines the distances indicated. This survey
was performed without the benefit of a current title commitment. There
may be matters affecting this property that only a current title
commitment would reveal. Undersigned assumes no libility for such
matters, Visible and Apparent Easements, if any, are as shown.
Bearing Source: All bearings are based on Texas State Plane
Coordinate System, North Central Zone.

G.F. No: No Title Provided

G.F. No: GF Number

G.F. No: GF Number

JOB #:  2212666   SCALE :   1" = 50 '  DRAWN BY :  JCN  CHECKED BY : SC

I, J. Scott Cole, Registered Professional Land Surveyor No. 5411, do
hereby certify that this plat is the result of a survey made by me or
under my direction on the ground of the property shown hereon, the
lines and dimensions of said property being as indicated by this plat.
The size, location and types of buildings and improvements are as shown,
set back from the property lines the distances indicated. This survey
was performed without the benefit of a current title commitment. There
may be matters affecting this property that only a current title
commitment would reveal. Undersigned assumes no libility for such
matters, Visible and Apparent Easements, if any, are as shown.
Bearing Source: All bearings are based on Texas State Plane
Coordinate System, North Central Zone.

G.F. No: No Title Provided

Date: 10/14/2022

1
2 F.I.R. C.M. at the Northwest corner of Lot 15







Item No. 02 
 
 

 
 

City of Lucas 
Board of Adjustment Agenda Request 

December 14, 2022 
 

Requester: City Secretary Erin Day 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Consider approval of the minutes of the May 25, 2022 Board of Adjustment meeting. 
 
Background Information  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. May 25, 2022 Board of Adjustment minutes. 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation   
 
NA 
 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to approve the minutes of the May 25, 2022 Board of Adjustment meeting. 
 
 
 

 

 

 



1 | P a g e   B o a r d  o f  A d j u s t m e n t  
  M a y  2 5 ,  2 0 2 2  

MINUTES 
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT MEETING 

May 25, 2022 | 6:30 PM  
Council Chambers | Video Conference 

City Hall | 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 
 

Call to Order  
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:30 pm. It was determined that a quorum was present, and the 
Pledge of Allegiance was recited. Due to the absence of a regular member, Alternate Member Michael 
Dunn served as a voting member.  
 
Members Present: Staff Present: 
Chairman Tom Redman 
Vice Chairman Ron Poteete 
Member Brenda Rizos (attended remotely) 
Member Brian Stubblefield 
Alternate Member Michael Dunn (voting member)  
Alternate Member Sean Watts  
 
Member Absent:  
Member Brian Dale 
 

City Manager Joni Clarke  
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
City Secretary Stacy Henderson  
Building Inspector Scott DeJong 
City Attorney Courtney Morris  
 
 

Chairman Redman identified all witnesses that would be presenting before the Board, including City 
staff members, and conducted the swearing in process for all witnesses.   
 
Public Hearing Agenda  

 

 
1. Public hearing to consider the request by Mohammad Dezfoolian for a variance from 

the City’s Code of Ordinances to reduce the lot size of a commercial business to less 
than required for the lot located at 175 Southview Drive, ABS A0017 James Anderson 
Survey, Sheet 1, Tract 41, 0.5399 acres.  

 
Building Inspector Scott DeJong briefed the Board on the variance request noting that the Texas 
Department of Transportation was widening the intersection in front of the Lucas Food Mart, thereby 
requiring the applicant to move his septic system from its current location across Southview Drive to 
behind the Lucas Food Mart. Moving the septic system would require additional land and replatting 
of the property. Mr. DeJong noted that the Lucas Food Mart property does not meet current 
Commercial zoning requirements and are requesting a variance from the minimum lot standards.  
 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn advised that to plat the property, the applicant must 
come into compliance with the City’s regulations, and in order to do that he has to have this variance. 
Chairman Redman asked if there would be a health issue with the septic system being on a smaller lot. 
Mr. Hilbourn advised there would not be an issue. 
 
The public hearing was opened at 6:45 p.m. 
 



2 | P a g e   B o a r d  o f  A d j u s t m e n t  
  M a y  2 5 ,  2 0 2 2  

Mohammad Dezfoolian, Lucas Food Mart, 175 Southview Drive explained that the Texas Department 
of Transportation was widening the roadway in front of his store and forcing him to move his septic 
system. Mr. Dezfoolian stated a hardship existed as the widening of the roadway and septic system 
relocation was out of his control.  
 
The public hearing was closed at 6:50 pm.  
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Vice Chairman Poteete seconded by Alternate Member Dunn 

to approve the variance request by Mohammad Dezfoolian from the City’s Code of 
Ordinances to reduce the lot size of a commercial business to less than required for 
the lot located at 175 Southview Drive, ABS A0017 James Anderson Survey, Sheet 1, 
Tract 41, 0.5399 acres. The motion passed unanimously by a 5 to 0 vote.  

 
Regular Agenda 

 

 
2. Consider approval of the minutes of the March 23, 2022 Board of Adjustment meeting.  
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Alternate Member Dunn, seconded by Vice Chairman Poteete 

to approve the minutes as presented.  The motion passed unanimously by a 5 to 0 
vote.  

 
3. Adjournment. 
 
Chairman Redman adjourned the meeting at 6:54 pm.  
 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
Tom Redman, Chairman      Erin Day, City Secretary  


	Agenda
	Item 1 - Public Hearing 32 Woodmoor Drive
	Item 2 - Approval of Minutes



